
A G E N D A  

WORK SESSION     AMENDED 

City of Moberly 

September 16, 2019 

6:00 PM 
  

 

Requests, Ordinances, and Miscellaneous 
1. An application submitted by Lori Turk for a zoning change from an R-1 (Single Family Residential 

District) to an R-1/PD (Single Family/Planned District) for a proposed Medical Marijuana 

manufacturing facility on the property located at 1301 Union Ave. 

2. Based on the traffic study, staff recommended increasing the speed limit from 25mph to 35mph on 

Terrill Road 

3. Sugar Creek Dam Leak Mitigation Phase II – Bidding and Construction Proposal for Professional 

Engineering Services. 

4. Replacement of the Sludge Basin Blower at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

5. A Resolution Expressing Support For Renovation Of The Moberly Jr. High Building For Use As 

Senior Apartments And Associated Applications To The Missouri Housing Development 

Commission For Low Income Housing Tax Credit; Authorizing Letters Of Support. 

6. A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With The Timothy Zike For Property Located At 122 

N Williams Street And Authorizing The City Manager To Execute The Lease. 

7. Review of RFQ for consultant to research the history of Moberly for accuracy. 

8.  Review of RFP for historic walking tour application   

9. Receipt of bids for lease purchase financing of energy performance contracting projects. 

1



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev. 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: An application submitted by Lori Turk for a zoning change from an R-1 

(Single Family Residential District) to an R-1/PD (Single Family/Planned 

District) for a proposed Medical Marijuana manufacturing facility on the 

property located at 1301 Union Ave. 

  

Summary: The Planning & Zoning Commission recommended approval for the request of 

a zoning change at the meeting on August 26, 2019.  Attached is the 

application submitted by Lori Turk, a copy of the staff report and a copy of the 

re-zoning permit. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Bring forward to the October 7, 2019 regular City Council meeting for final 

approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
  x    Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

2

WS #1.



3

WS #1.



4

WS #1.



5

WS #1.



6

WS #1.



7

WS #1.



8

WS #1.



9

WS #1.



10

WS #1.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Works 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Establishing a speed limit for Terrill Road. 

  

Summary: Based on the traffic study, staff recommended increasing the speed limit from 

25mph to 35mph. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Direct staff to bring forward to the October 7, 2019 regular City Council 

meeting for final approval. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
  x     Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

11

WS #2.



 

 

 BILL NO: __________________ 
   

 

ORDINANCE NO: ______________  

 
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE SPEED LIMIT FOR TERRILL ROAD. 

 

Whereas, Section 304.120 RSMo., provides that municipalities may, by ordinance, establish 
speed regulations within the limits of the municipality; and 
 
Whereas, Section 40-276 of the Moberly City Code provides that the rate of speed for motor 
vehicles in the city is 25 miles per hour unless otherwise provided; and 
 
Whereas, the Moberly city staff are recommending that a 35 miles per hour speed limit be 
established for Terrill Road as it runs from the west city limits to the east city limits. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MOBERLY, MISSOURI TO WIT: 

 

 SECTION ONE: Pursuant to Section 20-276 of the Moberly City Code the speed limit 
for Terrill Road as it runs from the west city limits to the east city limits is set at 35 miles per 
hour. 
 

SECTION TWO: The table of speed limits provided in Section 20-276 of the City 
Code is hereby amended to so provide. 

 
SECTION THREE: This ordinance shall take immediate effect upon passage by the city 

council.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 7TH 

day of October, 2019. 

       ____________________________ 
Presiding Officer at Meeting  

ATTEST:  

________________________ 

City Clerk  
 

12

WS #2.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Sugar Creek Dam Leak Mitigation Phase II – Bidding and Construction 

Proposal for Professional Engineering Services. 

  

Summary: The sugar Creek Dam has experienced seepage through the west abutment 
for over 37 years. A grouting program in 1980 reduced leakage rates from 
around 225 gallons per minute down to less than 20 gallons per minute. Since 
that time, the seepage rate has progressively increased. This phase will 
consist of bidding and construction services for the project designed in Phase 
I. 

Recommended 

Action: Direct Staff to bring forward to the regular session on October 7th, 2019. 

  

Fund Name: Design Engineering 

  

Account Number: 304.000.5408 

  

Available Budget $: 1,595,000 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

13

WS #3.



14

WS #3.



15

WS #3.



16

WS #3.



17

WS #3.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Public Utilities 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Replacement of the Sludge Basin Blower at the Wastewater Treatment Plant 

  

Summary: On August 10, 2019, a blower for the sludge holding tank at the Wastewater 

Treatment Plant caught fire and burned completely.  There are two blowers for 

this facility; the other blower was de-energized until it could be checked for 

defects to avoid a similar catastrophic event.  Upon examination, it was 

determined that the blower portion of the second unit also needed extensive 

repairs, and a remanufactured unit was ordered and installed on August 19 and 

20, 2019.  A quote for a replacement unit was received from Hydrokinetics, 

Inc. including the enclosure and all equipment inside for $51,600, not 

including installation costs.  Hydrokinetics is the sole source distributor for 

this equipment in our area. The lead time for this unit is approximately 12-16 

weeks.  We are currently running on 1 blower until the second unit can be 

received and installed.  This equipment is essential to our operation and 

required for redundancy.   

 

The utilities replacement fund is a reserve fund utilized to pay for unexpected 

expenses to replace or repair large expense items that are not budgeted. The 

fund balance in this account is sufficient to cover this expense.  Normally, this 

line item is not budgeted for anticipated replacements. 

  

Recommended 

Action: Authorize the purchase of the blower through Hydrokinetics, LLC. 

  

Fund Name: Utilities Replacement Fund 

  

Account Number: 302.000.5311 

  

Available Budget $: 0 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

18

WS #4.



19

WS #4.



20

WS #4.



21

WS #4.



22

WS #4.



23

WS #4.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Expressing Support For Renovation Of The Moberly Jr. High 

Building For Use As Senior Apartments And Associated Applications To The 

Missouri Housing Development Commission For Low Income Housing Tax 

Credit; Authorizing Letters Of Support. 

  

Summary: Recently, Horizon Housing Foundation was given the property commonly 

known as the Moberly Junior High by the previous owner.  They are working 

with ND Consulting to work with the Missouri Housing Development 

Corporation at applying for low-income housing tax credits for senior housing 

for the Moberly Junior High project.  These tax credits are very competitive 

and support of the community is one of the biggest factors in receiving 

funding.  Similar projects for this property have been proposed in the past, but 

this proposal has a few distinctions.  The project will be dedicated to senior 

housing with income restrictions.  All tenants will have to pay rent to live in 

the apartments, and the amount of apartments being proposed is far less than 

previous submittals.  Furthermore, the consultations group and owners of the 

property have extensive knowledge, history and success with housing tax 

credit programs through MHDC.  ND Consulting is requesting support for 

their application and is requesting a resolution of support and letters of support 

from citizens and organizations in the community for this proposal.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to bring to the October 7th Council meeting for final approval 

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
     Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence    x    Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 
24

WS #5.



RESOLUTION NO. _________ 

 

A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING SUPPORT FOR RENOVATION OF THE 

MOBERLY JR. HIGH BUILDING FOR USE AS SENIOR APARTMENTS AND 

ASSOCIATED APPLICATIONS TO THE MISSOURI HOUSING DEVELOPMENT 

COMMISSION FOR LOW INCOME HOUSING TAX CREDIT; AUTHORIZING 

LETTERS OF SUPPORT. 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the public interest and general welfare of 

the City that affordable rental housing that is accessible, energy efficient, healthy, safe and 

well-maintained be made available to the residents of the City of Moberly; and 

 

WHEREAS, ND Consulting Group & the Horizon Housing Foundation will submit 

to the Missouri Housing Development Commission an application for consideration of 

award of Low Income Housing Tax Credits necessary to finance the renovation of the 

Tannehill Apartments; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

MOBERLY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS, TO-WIT: 

 

SECTION ONE:  The City of Moberly hereby supports the application made by 

ND Consulting Group & the Horizon Housing Foundation, Missouri to the Missouri 

Housing Development Commission for Low Income Housing Tax Credits for renovation 

of forty-eight (48) public housing units for seniors to be known as Tannehill Apartments. 

 

 SECTION TWO:   This Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after 

its passage and adoption as provided by law. The City Council hereby authorizes Mayor 

Jerry Jeffrey to provide letters of support to ND Consulting Group & Horizon Housing 

Foundation for the renovation of the Moberly Jr. High for use as Tannehill Apartments, a 

48 One & Two bedroom Unit Project.  

 

 PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Council of the City of Moberly, Missouri, this 

_____ day of ______________, 2019 

 

    

 

   ______________________________ 

   Presiding Officer at Meeting 

Attest: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

D. K. Galloway, City Clerk 

25

WS #5.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: City Manager 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: A Resolution Approving A Lease Agreement With The Timothy Zike For 

Property Located At 122 N Williams Street And Authorizing The City 

Manager To Execute The Lease. 

  

Summary: The city recently acquired a building Williams and Reed Street which had 

existing lessees.  There is one retail space still available which Mr. Tim Zike 

has expressed interest in renting.  The proposed lease has an initial term of 6 

months for $500.00 per month and then continues on a month-to-month basis 

thereafter.  Mr. Zike has a memorabilia business which he currently operates 

outside of the city limits. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Forward the Resolution and Lease for approval on the Regular Agenda for 

October 7, 2019. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence   x     Proposed Resolution   
      Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes    x   Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

26

WS #6.



BILL NO: ______________    RESOLUTION NO:___________ 

 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE TIMOTHY ZIKE 

FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 122 N WILLIAMS STREET AND AUTHORIZING 

THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE LEASE. 

 

WHEREAS, Timothy Zike is desirous of renting retail office space from the city at 122 

N Williams Street for a memorabilia/collectables business; and 

WHEREAS, it is desirable to the city to have tenants using retail business space in the 

downtown Moberly; and  

WHEREAS, the lease agreement attached hereto provides for an initial six-month term 

with successive one month renewals which can be terminated or renewed by either party and sets 

forth the rights and liabilities of the parties. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the lease agreement with Timothy Zike is hereby approved and 

the City Manager is hereby authorized to execute the Agreement on behalf of the City of 

Moberly, Missouri. 

RESOLVED this 7th day of October, 2019, by the Council of the City of Moberly, 

Missouri. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Presiding Officer at Meeting 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

City Clerk 

 

27

WS #6.



Page 1 of 6 
 

    
 

OFFICE LEASE 
CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
122 NORTH WILLIAMS STREET 

 
  
 THIS LEASE is made this ___ day of ___________, 2019, between the City of Moberly, Missouri, 
(hereinafter “City”) a municipal corporation and Timothy Zike (hereinafter “Lessee”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

A. City is a Third-Class statutory city duly organized and validly existing under the laws of the 
state of Missouri with the power to conduct municipal business pursuant to Missouri law 
and the Ordinances duly enacted by the Moberly City Council. 

B. City is the owner of various downtown retail buildings which are available to local 
businesses to rent. 

C. City leases office space in a building at 122 N. Williams and desires to lease said space to 
Lessee. 

D. Lessee is desirous of operating a memorabilia/collectables retail business at said location. 
 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
SECTION 1. RECITALS 
 
 The above stated Recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein and made a part of 
this Lease agreement (hereinafter “Agreement”). 
 
SECTION 2. PREMISES 
 
 City hereby leases to Lessee, and Lessee hereby leases from City,  the office space including a 
bathroom located at 122 N. Williams Street, Moberly, Missouri 65270 (hereinafter the “Premises”).  
Lessee accepts the Premises “As Is,” subject to all applicable municipal, state and federal laws, 
ordinances, regulations and policies governing and regulating the use of the Premises, and any 
covenants or restrictions of record.  Lessee acknowledges that City has made no representations or 
warranties as to the physical state of the Premises, or any suitability of the Premises. 
 
 2.1 Non-Exclusive Use.  The building which includes 122 N. Williams has other retail lessees 
who operate businesses in Moberly, MO. 
 
 2.2 Waiver.  Lessee hereby waives any claims for damages for any injury or inconvenience 
or interference with Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Premises, any loss of occupancy or quiet 
enjoyment of the Premises or any other loss occasioned by City’s exercise of its rights under this 
Agreement or by the City’s actions taken for management and protection of the City’s property 
resources and visitors. 
 

28

WS #6.



Page 2 of 6 
 

 2.3   Ownership of Premises.  This Agreement does not vest in Lessee any fee interest in the 
Premises.  Title to the Premises at all times is with and shall remain solely with City. 
 
SECTION 3. TERM 
 
 3.1 Six Months.  The initial term of this lease shall be for six months beginning on October 1, 
2019 and ending on March 31, 2020. 
 
 3.2 Renewal.  This lease shall renew on a month-to-month basis following the end of the 
initial six-month term until terminated by either party.  Termination shall be in writing and delivered 
thirty (30) days prior to the termination date.  Renewals shall be on the same terms and conditions 
stated herein unless amended in writing prior to the start date of the renewal term. 
 
 3.3 Abandonment.  Lessee shall occupy the Premises during the entire Lease Term, as 
described herein.  If it fails to do so, Lessee may be determined as in default for abandoning the 
Premises. 
 
SECTION 4. RENTAL AMOUNT 
 
 4.1 Monthly.  Lessee shall pay Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00) per month during the term of 
this lease.  Payment is due no later than the first business day of each month.  Lessee may prepay any 
amount at any time.   
  
 
SECTION 5. LESSEE’S PERMITTED USE AND ACTIVITY 
 
 5.1 Use.  Lessee may utilize the Premises only for the purposes necessary to conduct its 
usual business operations.  Lessee intends to operate a retail memorabilia/collectables business on the 
premises.  Lessee shall obtain a city business license prior to beginning business operations on the 
premises. 
 
 5.2 Access and Key.  Lessee shall be issued a key and security code  and permitted free 
access for ingress and egress one day each week.  Lessee shall be charged $20 to replace a door key. 
 
 5.3 Alterations.  Lessee shall not make any alterations of any nature to the Premises without 
the written permission of the City.   
 
SECTION 6. CITY’S OBLIGATIONS 
    
 6.1 City Inspection.  City shall, at all reasonable times, have the full and unrestricted right to 
enter the Premises for the purpose of inspecting the leased area, for maintenance and to determine 
compliance with the terms of this Agreement. 
 
 6.2 Maintenance.  City agrees to maintain the leased Premises in the same condition as 
when leased, ordinary wear and tear excepted, during the term of this Agreement. 
 
 6.3 Trash Disposal.  City agrees to pay for trash service at the leased premises. 
 

29

WS #6.



Page 3 of 6 
 

 6.4 Utilities.  City shall provide all utilities necessary for the business operations of the 
Lessee except Lessee shall provide internet and cable if desired.   
 
SECTION 7. ASSIGNMENT 
 
 7.1 Lessee shall not assign, hypothecate, or in any manner transfer any interest in this 
Agreement to any person or entity directly or indirectly, by operation of law or otherwise, without first 
securing City’s express written approval of such transfer. 
 
SECTION 8. LIABILITY 
 
 8.1 To the extent governed by applicable state law, each party will be responsible for its 
own acts and results arising from those actions, and shall not be responsible for the acts of the other 
party and results arising from those actions. 
 
 8.2 Each party agrees, to the extent allowed by law, that it will assume all risk and liability to 
itself and its agents and employees for any cause of action resulting from any operations or conduct of 
its agents or employees under this Agreement. Each party’s liabilities shall be governed by applicable 
state law. 
 
 8.3 Lessee agrees to indemnify and hold the city harmless for any claim, causes of action, or 
judgement resulting from Lessee’s use of the property or injury or damage to any third party. 
 
SECTION 9. INSURANCE 
 
 9.1 Lessor.  Lessor maintains Commercial General Liability coverage for the structure. 

 
9.2 Lessee.  Lessee shall be responsible for maintaining renter’s insurance or business 

interruption coverage, if desired. 
 
 9.3 Immunities.  The parties hereto understand and agree that City is relying on and does 
not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, any monetary limitations or any other 
applicable sovereign, governmental, or official immunities and protections provided by the state of 
Missouri, from time to time amended, or otherwise available to City, or its elected officials or 
employees. 
 
 
 
 
SECTION 10. DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION 
 
 If the Premises or any portion thereof are damaged or destroyed at any time during the lease 
term, the City, as promptly as reasonably practicable and with all due diligence, shall repair or replace 
the damaged or destroyed Premises to the condition that existed prior to the damage or destruction 
and the Lessee’s rent obligation during that time shall be abated.  Or the City may terminate this 
Agreement without liability and the Lessee’s rental obligation shall terminate. 
 
SECTION 11. DEFAULTS 

30

WS #6.



Page 4 of 6 
 

 
 The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute a material default 
and breach of this lease Agreement by Lessee: 
 

A. The failure by Lessee to make any payment of Rent; or any other payment required to be 
made by Lessee hereunder, as and when due, where such failure shall continue for a period 
of ten (10) calendar days after written notice from City to Lessee. 

B. The failure by Lessee to comply with Section 5.3 of this Agreement. 
C. An unapproved or unauthorized transfer of any interest acquired under this Agreement. 
D. The occurrence of any other event described as constituting an “Event of Default” 

elsewhere in this Agreement. 
E. The discovery by City that any material information provided by Lessee related to this 

Agreement is materially false. 
 
SECTION 12. REMEDIES 
 
 In the event of any material default or breach by Lessee, City may at any time thereafter, with or 
without notice or demand and without limiting City in the exercise of any right or remedy which City 
may have by reason of such default or breach, avail itself of the following remedies, which are 
cumulative and not exclusive: 
 

A. City may recover possession of the leased Premises by any lawful means available to it, 
including self-entry, in which case this lease Agreement shall terminate immediately and 
Lessee shall immediately remove all personal property from the Premises.  If, after thirty 
days’ notice in writing, Lessee shall fail to remove personal property City may remove such 
property to another location with Lessee assuming any risk of loss or damage to such 
property.   

 
SECTION 13. TERMINATION 
 
 This lease Agreement is terminable with or without cause by either party upon thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice setting forth a date of termination of the Agreement.  Upon notice of 
termination, Lessee shall be obligated to pay immediately any Rent , obligations or other fees due and 
owing to City.  By the date given for termination, Lessee shall vacate the Premises and immediately 
remove all personal property.   
 
 If Lessee fails to vacate the Premises or fails to remove all personal property from the Premises, 
City may enter and recover possession.  City may also, at its election, dispose of any remaining personal 
property and charge all costs associated with such disposal to Lessee.  City shall deem any personal 
property remaining on the Premises as having been abandoned by Lessee. 
 
SECTION 14. NOTICES 
 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals to be given under this lease Agreement shall be 
given in writing and shall be by hand delivery, overnight mail service, registered or certified mail, or 
regular first-class mail.  All notices, demands, requests or approvals from Lessee to City shall be 
addressed to: 
  Brian Crane 

31

WS #6.



Page 5 of 6 
 

  City Manager 
  101 West Reed Street 
  Moberly, MO 65270 
   
 
 All notices, demands, requests or approvals from City to Lessee shall be addressed to: 
 
  Missouri State Highway Patrol 
  Driver and Vehicle Safety Division 
  Attn: Division Director 
  P.O. Box 568 
  Jefferson City, MO 65102-0568 
 
SECTION 15. MUNICIPAL AUTHORITY 
 
 City may only act through its City Council to approve this Agreement therefore execution of this 
Agreement is contingent upon approval by the Moberly City Council. 
 
SECTION 16. GOVERNING LAW 
 
 This lease Agreement has been made and shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Missouri.  Venue may be appropriate in the Randolph County Circuit Court. 
 
SECTION 17. EMPLOYMENT OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS PROHIBITED 
 
 Lessee agrees to comply with Missouri Revised Statute Section 285.530 in that Lessee shall not 
knowingly employ, hire for employment, or continue to employ an unauthorized alien to perform work 
within the State of Missouri. 
 
SECTION 18. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT 
 
 City is subject to the Missouri Sunshine Law.  The Parties agree that this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in accordance with the provisions of the Missouri Sunshine Law. 
 
SECTION 19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
 This Agreement represents the entire agreement between the Parties relative to the lease.  All 
previous or contemporaneous contracts, representations, promises and conditions relating to the lease 
are superseded. 
 
SECTION 15. COUNTERPARTS 
 
 This lease Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which is an original, and 
all of which together constitute but one and the same document. 
 
SECTION 16. NO PROMISE OF FUNDING 
 

32

WS #6.



Page 6 of 6 
 

 Other than as specifically set forth herein, this Agreement is not an obligation or commitment of 
funds, nor a basis for transfer of funds. Each party shall bear its own costs in relation to this Agreement.  
Expenditures by each party will be subject to applicable budgetary processes and to availability of funds 
pursuant to applicable laws, regulations, and policies. The parties expressly acknowledge that this in no 
way implies that any appropriation, tender, or allocation of funds for such expenditures. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this lease Agreement on the date set forth 
above. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:    CITY OF MOBERLY, MISSOURI 
 
 
___________________________      By: _______________________________ 
Randall D. Thompson     Brian Crane 
City Attorney      City Administrator 
 
ATTEST:        
 
 
___________________________   
City Clerk 
  
 
LESSEE 
 
___________________________ 
Timothy Zike 

33

WS #6.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev.  

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Review of RFQ for consultant to research the history of Moberly for accuracy. 

  

Summary: We have secured funding to develop a historic walking tour app for the City of 

Moberly.  Since that time we have sent out RFP’s to hire a certified 

historian.  The historian will be working with the Randolph Co. Historical 

Society to verify historical accuracy of the stories we wish to feature as part of 

the tour.  We have received one proposal, which has been forwarded to the 

state historic preservation office.   

  

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to bring to the October 7th Council meeting for final approval.  

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x    Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
    x  Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report   x      Other         Passed Failed 

 
34

WS #7.



35

WS #7.



36

WS #7.



37

WS #7.



38

WS #7.



39

WS #7.



40

WS #7.



41

WS #7.



42

WS #7.



43

WS #7.



44

WS #7.



45

WS #7.



46

WS #7.



47

WS #7.



48

WS #7.



49

WS #7.



50

WS #7.



51

WS #7.



52

WS #7.



53

WS #7.



54

WS #7.



55

WS #7.



56

WS #7.



57

WS #7.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Comm. Dev.  

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item:  Review of RFP for historic walking tour application   

  

Summary: We have secured funding to develop a historic walking tour app for the City of 

Moberly.  Since that time we have sent out RFP’s to hire a company to create 

the app and content.  The company will be working with a selected historian to 

build the app and create the content.  The selected company will also 

participate in two public meetings to discuss the project and listen to 

community feedback/input.  We have received three proposals for this project, 

which have been forwarded to the state historic preservation office for review.  

  

Recommended 

Action: Direct staff to bring to the October 7th Council meeting for final approval.  

  

Fund Name:   

  

Account Number:   

  

Available Budget $:   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
   x   Correspondence          Proposed Resolution   
       Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 
58

WS #8.



59

WS #8.



60

WS #8.



61

WS #8.



62

WS #8.



63

WS #8.



64

WS #8.



65

WS #8.



66

WS #8.



67

WS #8.



68

WS #8.



69

WS #8.



70

WS #8.



71

WS #8.



72

WS #8.



73

WS #8.



74

WS #8.



75

WS #8.



76

WS #8.



77

WS #8.



78

WS #8.



79

WS #8.



80

WS #8.



81

WS #8.



82

WS #8.



83

WS #8.



84

WS #8.



85

WS #8.



86

WS #8.



87

WS #8.



88

WS #8.



89

WS #8.



90

WS #8.



91

WS #8.



92

WS #8.



93

WS #8.



94

WS #8.



95

WS #8.



96

WS #8.



97

WS #8.



98

WS #8.



99

WS #8.



100

WS #8.



101

WS #8.



102

WS #8.



103

WS #8.



104

WS #8.



105

WS #8.



106

WS #8.



107

WS #8.



108

WS #8.



109

WS #8.



110

WS #8.



111

WS #8.



112

WS #8.



113

WS #8.



114

WS #8.



115

WS #8.



116

WS #8.



117

WS #8.



118

WS #8.



City of Moberly 

City Council Agenda Summary 

Agenda Number:  

Department: Finance 

Date: September 16, 2019 
 

  

Agenda Item: Receipt of bids for lease purchase financing of energy performance 

contracting projects. 

  

Summary: Lease purchase financing proposals were solicited from 7 entities for 

approximately $4.6 million in projects for the Public Utilities Department. 

Proposals were received from First State Community Bank (3.190%) and 

Signature Public Funding Corp. (2.945%). Copies of those bids are attached 

for your review. Signature Public Funding is a firm that the energy 

performance consultant, Energy Solutions Professionals, has used for multiple 

projects with other clients with excellent results. Terms in their proposal 

require acceptance of their bid by September 18, 2019, so if you are agreeable 

we would like to provide that acceptance to them. Staff recommends moving 

forward with acceptance of these bids and ultimately entering into a contract 

with Signature Public Funding. 

  

Recommended 

Action: 

Accept these bids and direct staff to provide acceptance of the bid from 

Signature Public Funding. 

  

Fund Name: N/A 

  

Account Number: N/A 

  

Available Budget $: N/A 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
ATTACHMENTS:        Roll Call  Aye  Nay 
 
          Memo         Council Minutes Mayor    
    Staff Report         Proposed Ordinance M  S  Jeffrey     
       Correspondence   _    Proposed Resolution   
   X   Bid Tabulation         Attorney’s Report Council Member 
     P/C Recommendation         Petition M  S  Brubaker     
        P/C Minutes         Contract M  S  Kimmons     
        Application         Budget Amendment M  S  Davis     
        Citizen         Legal Notice   M  S  Kyser     
        Consultant Report         Other         Passed Failed 

 

119

WS #9.



 
 

fscb.com Success Starts Here Member FDIC 

 
September 13, 2019 
 
 
Attn: Greg Hodge, Director of Finance 

City of Moberly 
101 West Reed Street 
Moberly, Missouri 65270 

 
Cc: Jeff Flathman, President 
 Energy Solutions Professionals 
 
Re: Request for Proposal for Financing of Energy Performance Contract 
 
First State Community Bank is pleased to provide the following proposal to serve as lessor to the City of 
Moberly’s Energy Performance Contract project.  Our proposal is outlined below: 
 
Lessee City of Moberly 

 
Lessor 
Contacts 

Joe Miller, President    Curt Gilliam, Vice President 
First State Community Bank   First State Community Bank 
100 South 4th Street    302 West St. Louis Street 
Moberly, Missouri 65270   Pacific, Missouri 63069 
(573) 818-3784    (573) 701-6062 
jrmiller@fscb.com     cgilliam@fscb.com 
 

About Us Founded in 1954, First State Community Bank is a financial leader in the State of 
Missouri committed to growing stronger communities by helping people and 
organizations achieve and protect financial success.  Since its inception in 2013, the 
First State Community Bank Governmental Lending Team has completed over 170 
financings for Missouri municipalities with a total amount financed of over 
$115,000,000. 
 

Pricing Interest Rate:  3.19% 
Interest Day Basis: 30/360 
Amortization:  1 Year Construction Period / 10 Year Amortization 
   Quarterly Principal & Interest (See Appendix A&B) 
 
The proposal and rates committed to in this letter are based on designating the lease as 
a bank qualified, tax-exempt obligation.  If the tax status were to change during the 
term of the lease, the interest rate would be increased by 1.00% to the date the lease 
was deemed taxable.  The interest rate quoted above is dependent on the lease closing 
within 60 days from the date of this letter. 
 
 

120

WS #9.

mailto:jrmiller@fscb.com
mailto:cgilliam@fscb.com


2 

Drawdown 
Structure 

(No Escrow 
Account) 

First State Community Bank proposes using a 12 month drawdown interest structure 
during the construction period.  This means that for the first 12 months of the lease, 
interest accrues only on spent moneys.  Funds will be advanced as requested by the 
City with all funds advanced within 12 months of lease closing. 

A lease structure where the full amount is funded on day one and deposited to an 
escrow account (as contemplated in the RFP) will always result in some amount of 
negative arbitrage (the spread between the interest rate on the lease and the escrow 
earnings rate) on unspent balances.  Conversely, a drawdown interest structure has no 
negative arbitrage and is the most cost-efficient method for financing construction 
periods.  Furthermore, a drawdown structure removes the need to manage the 
investments of an escrow account and eliminates the cost of an escrow trustee. 

Prepayment The lease can be prepaid at no penalty in part on each annual anniversary date of the 
lease or in full at any time with 30 days’ notice provided to the lessor. 

Lessor 
Counsel 

It is our understanding that the City has engaged Gilmore & Bell to serve as Special 
Tax Counsel for the lease transaction.  So long as Gilmore & Bell prepares the 
Equipment Lease Purchase Agreement and related legal documents for the tax-exempt 
financing, First State Community Bank will not require separate lessor counsel. 

Other Fees None. 

Reserve Fund First State Community Bank will not require a debt service reserve fund. 

Other / 
Conditions 
Precedent 

First State Community Bank will require a security interest in the leased equipment. 
This proposal is subject to First State Community Bank’s Executive Loan Committee 
approval.  Proposed terms are contingent upon application to the Missouri FIRST 
linked deposit program. 

We greatly appreciate the opportunity to submit this proposal to you.  Should you have any questions or if 
we may be of further service, please do not hesitate to contact me. 

Sincerely, 

Joe Miller 
President 

121

WS #9.



Sources
Lease Proceeds 4,642,447.00   
Total 4,642,447.00   

Uses
Water Meters 1,958,508.00   
Advanced Metering Infrastructure 1,651,892.00   
Billing & Accounting Software System 414,966.00      
SBR Blowers / VFDs at Wastewater Treatment Plant 474,929.00      
VFDs at Water Treatment Plant 97,128.00        
Water Treatment Plant PLC Controller Upgrade 45,024.00        
Total 4,642,447.00   

Appendix A
City of Moberly

Preliminary Sources & Uses of Funds

122

WS #9.



Payment Total Remaining
Date Principal Rate Interest P&I Balance

11/1/2019
11/1/2020 80,217.62     80,217.62        4,642,447.00   

2/1/2021 98,990.26        3.19% 37,023.51     136,013.77      4,543,456.74   
5/1/2021 99,779.70        3.19% 36,234.07     136,013.77      4,443,677.04   
8/1/2021 100,575.45      3.19% 35,438.32     136,013.77      4,343,101.59   

11/1/2021 101,377.53      3.19% 34,636.24     136,013.77      4,241,724.06   
2/1/2022 102,186.02      3.19% 33,827.75     136,013.77      4,139,538.04   
5/1/2022 103,000.96      3.19% 33,012.81     136,013.77      4,036,537.08   
8/1/2022 103,822.38      3.19% 32,191.39     136,013.77      3,932,714.70   

11/1/2022 104,650.38      3.19% 31,363.39     136,013.77      3,828,064.32   
2/1/2023 105,484.95      3.19% 30,528.82     136,013.77      3,722,579.37   
5/1/2023 106,326.20      3.19% 29,687.57     136,013.77      3,616,253.17   
8/1/2023 107,174.15      3.19% 28,839.62     136,013.77      3,509,079.02   

11/1/2023 108,028.87      3.19% 27,984.90     136,013.77      3,401,050.15   
2/1/2024 108,890.39      3.19% 27,123.38     136,013.77      3,292,159.76   
5/1/2024 109,758.80      3.19% 26,254.97     136,013.77      3,182,400.96   
8/1/2024 110,634.12      3.19% 25,379.65     136,013.77      3,071,766.84   

11/1/2024 111,516.43      3.19% 24,497.34     136,013.77      2,960,250.41   
2/1/2025 112,405.78      3.19% 23,607.99     136,013.77      2,847,844.63   
5/1/2025 113,302.21      3.19% 22,711.56     136,013.77      2,734,542.42   
8/1/2025 114,205.79      3.19% 21,807.98     136,013.77      2,620,336.63   

11/1/2025 115,116.59      3.19% 20,897.18     136,013.77      2,505,220.04   
2/1/2026 116,034.64      3.19% 19,979.13     136,013.77      2,389,185.40   
5/1/2026 116,960.01      3.19% 19,053.76     136,013.77      2,272,225.39   
8/1/2026 117,892.78      3.19% 18,120.99     136,013.77      2,154,332.61   

11/1/2026 118,832.96      3.19% 17,180.81     136,013.77      2,035,499.65   
2/1/2027 119,780.67      3.19% 16,233.10     136,013.77      1,915,718.98   
5/1/2027 120,735.91      3.19% 15,277.86     136,013.77      1,794,983.07   
8/1/2027 121,698.78      3.19% 14,314.99     136,013.77      1,673,284.29   

11/1/2027 122,669.33      3.19% 13,344.44     136,013.77      1,550,614.96   
2/1/2028 123,647.61      3.19% 12,366.16     136,013.77      1,426,967.35   
5/1/2028 124,633.71      3.19% 11,380.06     136,013.77      1,302,333.64   
8/1/2028 125,627.66      3.19% 10,386.11     136,013.77      1,176,705.98   

11/1/2028 126,629.54      3.19% 9,384.23       136,013.77      1,050,076.44   

Appendix B
City of Moberly

Preliminary Payment Schedule

Construction Period *

123

WS #9.



Payment Total Remaining
Date Principal Rate Interest P&I Balance

2/1/2029 127,639.41      3.19% 8,374.36       136,013.77      922,437.03      
5/1/2029 128,657.33      3.19% 7,356.44       136,013.77      793,779.70      
8/1/2029 129,683.38      3.19% 6,330.39       136,013.77      664,096.32      

11/1/2029 130,717.61      3.19% 5,296.16       136,013.77      533,378.71      
2/1/2030 131,760.07      3.19% 4,253.70       136,013.77      401,618.64      
5/1/2030 132,810.86      3.19% 3,202.91       136,013.77      268,807.78      
8/1/2030 133,870.03      3.19% 2,143.74       136,013.77      134,937.75      

11/1/2030 134,937.75      3.19% 1,076.02       136,013.77      0.00                 

Total 4,642,447.00   878,321.42   5,520,768.42   

Draw Draw Accumulated Cumulative
Date Amount Rate Interest Interest Draws

11/1/2019 386,870.58      3.19% -               -                   386,870.58      
12/1/2019 386,870.58      3.19% 1,028.43       1,028.43          773,741.17      
1/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 2,056.86       3,085.29          1,160,611.75   
2/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 3,085.29       6,170.59          1,547,482.33   
3/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 4,113.72       10,284.31        1,934,352.92   
4/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 5,142.15       15,426.46        2,321,223.50   
5/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 6,170.59       21,597.05        2,708,094.08   
6/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 7,199.02       28,796.07        3,094,964.67   
7/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 8,227.45       37,023.51        3,481,835.25   
8/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 9,255.88       46,279.39        3,868,705.83   
9/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 10,284.31     56,563.70        4,255,576.42   

10/1/2020 386,870.58      3.19% 11,312.74     67,876.44        4,642,447.00   
11/1/2020 -                   3.19% 12,341.17     80,217.62        4,642,447.00   

* Interest during construction period assumes twelve equal monthly draws.

Preliminary Draw Schedule

Appendix B
City of Moberly

Preliminary Payment Schedule (Continued)

124

WS #9.



  

PROPOSAL AND TERMS SHEET 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposal Response to: 

 

Request for Proposal for Financing of 

Energy Performance Contract 

For  

City of Moberly 

$4,642,450 

 

 

By and Between 

 

 

Signature Public Funding Corp.  

 

and 

 

City of Moberly, Missouri 

 
 

 

 

*Subject to change 

 

 

 

 

     

Signature Public Funding Corp.,  
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Signature Bank 

125

WS #9.



 
Chris Youngs Mitchell, Executive Sales Officer 

303-617-1290 (Office) 

303-919-2929 (Mobile) 

cmitchell@signatureny.com  

 

September 13, 2019 

 

 

Greg Hodge, Director of Finance 

City of Moberly 

101 West Reed Street 

Moberly, MO  65270 

gregh@cityofmoberly.com  

 

RE:  City of Moberly, MO – Request for Financing Proposal due September 13, 

2019 

 

Dear Mr. Hodge: 

Signature Public Funding Corp. (“SPFC” or “Lessor”) is pleased to present to the City of 

Moberly (the “City” or “Lessee”) its Bank Qualified or Non-Bank Qualified, Tax-exempt 

Lease Purchase financing proposal (the “Proposal”) for the financing of energy 

conservation and facility improvement measures (the “Equipment”).  The terms and 

conditions of our Proposal are outlined in the attached proposal and terms sheet (the 

“Proposal” or “Terms Sheet”).   

 

Thank you for this opportunity to present our Terms Sheet to you.  We look forward to 

committing our resources, our members, and the expertise of SPFC to provide the City of 

Moberly with the most flexible and effective contracting package.   We will work with 

you to develop a repayment schedule that best meets the savings of the project and the 

budgetary needs of the City.   

 

We look forward to your favorable acknowledgment. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Chris Mitchell 
Chris Youngs Mitchell, Executive Sales Officer 

 

Cc:  Jeff Flathman, Energy Solutions Professionals, jeff@energyesp.com  

126

WS #9.

mailto:cmitchell@signatureny.com
mailto:gregh@cityofmoberly.com
mailto:jeff@energyesp.com


PROPOSAL & TERMS SHEET: BACKGROUND AND PARTIES 

City of Moberly 

Tax-exempt Lease Purchase Financing – Energy Conservation Measures, $4,642,450 

 

 

LESSEE: The City of Moberly (the “City” or “Lessee”), a 

political subdivision or body corporate and 

politic of the State of Missouri and qualifies as a 

political subdivision within the meaning of 

Section 103(c) of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended (the “Code”).   

 

LESSOR: Signature Public Funding Corp., a wholly-

owned subsidiary of Signature Bank (“SPFC” or 

“Lessor”), or its Assignee.   

 

TYPE OF FINANCING: A tax-exempt Lease Purchase Agreement (the 

“Lease”) to be executed between the Lessee and 

Lessor.  The Lessee will be responsible for all 

costs of operation, maintenance, insurance, taxes 

(if applicable) and expenses imposed by the 

ownership or possession of the Equipment.  Said 

Lease shall be subject to the annual 

appropriation of funds by Lessee’s governing 

body.  The Lease shall be governed by the laws 

of the State of Missouri and shall comply with 

all applicable state and federal laws and 

regulations. Lease Payments will be computed 

on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day 

months with the first quarterly payment due one 

month after the anticipated 12 month 

construction period. 

 

TAX EXEMPT STATUS: The Lease will be a tax-exempt financing such 

that the interest component of the Lease Payments 

will be excludable from the Lessor’s gross income 

for federal income tax calculations and exempt 

from all taxation in the State.  The Lessee 

covenants and agrees to comply with all 

requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 

1986, as amended, and all other applicable rules, 

laws, regulations and promulgations necessary to 

keep the interest portion exempt from such 

Federal and State income taxes.  If as a result of 

the Lessee’s failure to comply with the foregoing 

covenant or a change in the law and the interest 

portion of the Lease payments is included in the 

Lessor’s federal or state gross income tax 

calculations, then the interest due under the Lease 

may be adjusted for the effect of the failure or 

127

WS #9.



change, together with any fees or penalties 

resulting if due to change or noncompliance. 

 

The City reasonably anticipates the total amount 

of tax-exempt obligations (other than private 

activity bonds) to be issued by the City during 

calendar year 2019 will not exceed ten million 

($10,000,000.00) dollars and the transaction will 

be deemed “Bank Qualified” for federal tax 

purposes.  This Proposal is also applicable to a 

Non-Bank Qualified transaction. 

 

The City will hold legal title to the Equipment, 

and federal tax ownership will be deemed to be 

with the City.  The Lessor has not provided, nor 

will it provide tax or accounting advice to the 

Lessee regarding this transaction or the 

treatment thereof for tax and accounting 

purposes.  The Lessor is not a registered 

financial advisor, nor registered with the MSRB 

or as a broker-dealer in securities. The Lessee 

has obtained independent tax, financial advisory, 

securities and accounting advice as it deems 

necessary.   

 

An 8038-G will be provided with respect to the 

Lease executed in connection herewith. 

 

PROJECT/USE OF PROCEEDS: The equipment will consist of energy 

conservation and facility improvement measures 

as more fully described in the Request for 

Financing Proposal (the “Equipment”).  The 

specific items, makes, models and 

manufacturers/vendors of the Equipment will be 

selected by the Lessee (subject to the approval 

of the Lessor, which shall not be unreasonably 

withheld) and more fully set forth on the Lease 

Equipment Schedule and/or Acceptance 

Certificate delivered in connection with the draw 

from any escrow account.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

128

WS #9.



PROPOSAL & TERMS SHEET: BACKGROUND AND PARTIES 

City of Moberly 

Tax-exempt Lease Purchase Financing – Energy Conservation Measures, $4,642,450 

 
TERM, RATES, AND PAYMENTS:   

 
 

 

 

OPTION 

 

 

  

CLOSING 

DATE 

APPROXIMATE 

FINANCING 

AMOUNT TERM 

 

 

 

AVERAGE 

LIFE 

 

 

 

INTEREST 

RATE* STRUCTURE 

PAYMENT 

DUE 

 

 

 

 

FEES 

 
 

 

 
 

 

1 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

On or before 
October 18, 2019 $4,642,450* 10.83 years  

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
  6.35 years 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 
2.945%** Quarterly  

First P & I 

payment due 

one month 
after 12 

month 

construction 
period*** 

 
 

Documentation  - $0 

Legal - $0 
Signature Bank as 

Escrow Agent - $0 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

2 

 

 

 
 

 

On or before 
October 18, 2019 $4,642,450* 10.58 years 

 

 

 
 

 

 
6.21 years 

 

 

 
 

 

 
2.945%** Quarterly 

First P & I 

payment due 

one month 
after 12 

month 

construction 
period***  

 

Documentation  - $0 

Legal - $0 
Signature Bank as 

Escrow Agent - $0 

 
 

* Subject to change  

**The Interest Rates above are fixed and locked assuming that this Proposal is accepted on or before 

September 18, 2019 and the transaction closes on or before October 18, 2019.  SPFC shall use all 

reasonable efforts to honor the quoted interest rate after the expiration date; however, SPFC reserves the 

right to reset the rate if the transaction is not closed on or before October 18, 2019.    

*** Sample amortization schedules provided.  We will work with the City to develop a repayment schedule 

that best meets the City’s budgetary needs and savings of the project.   

 

RATE LOCK EXPIRATION: As noted above, the Interest Rate quoted shall be 

held firm for lease closing on or before October 

18, 2019 (“Closing Date”) provided the Lessee 

notifies SPFC in writing that the proposal has 

been accepted, subject to governing body 

approval, by September 18, 2019 (“Proposal 

Expiration Date”); which may be extended by 

the mutual agreement of the parties.  The 

Proposal Expiration Date and Estimated Closing 

Date shall be referred to as the “Expiration 

Date”.  SPFC shall use all reasonable efforts to 

honor the quoted interest rate after the 

Expiration Dates; however, SPFC reserves the 

right to reset the rate if the transaction is not 

closed on or before October 18, 2019. Once set, 

the Interest Rate and Payments will remain fixed 

for the term.  SPFC will work with the City to 

facilitate a lease closing as quickly as possible 

with receipt of all properly executed lease 

documentation. 

 

129

WS #9.



PREPAYMENT OPTIONS: The Lessee can exercise its right to prepay its 

obligations under the Lease in whole (partial 

prepayments are permitted with respect to 

damaged items of Equipment or unused lease 

proceeds remaining in the Escrow Account) on 

any scheduled payment date following 30 days’ 

notice by paying the Prepayment Price to the 

Lessor.  Prepayment Price is equal to the sum of: 

(a) the Lease Payment due on such date, (b) all 

other amounts due and owing under the Lease, 

and (c) 102% of the Remaining Principal 

Balance years 1-3, 101% of the Remaining 

Principal Balance thereafter.  We are open to 

discussion concerning prepayment terms. 

 

SECURITY: The Lessee will grant Lessor a first priority and 

perfected security interest in the Equipment, 

Escrow Fund, and all proceeds with respect to 

the foregoing.  Lessor will file UCC-1 fixture 

financing statements in order to perfect its 

security interest at its cost and expense; 

provided, however, that Lessee will provide 

Lessor with all reasonably requested information 

in order to make such filings.   

 

ESCROW FUNDING: SPFC has assumed funding of the Lease 

Proceeds into an Escrow Account established 

pursuant to an Escrow Agreement (the 

“Escrow).  The Escrow Account shall be used to 

pay contractors and vendors and any fees (if 

any) associated with the financing.  The Escrow 

shall be provided by Signature Bank (the 

“Escrow Agent”) using the Escrow Agent’s 

standard form of escrow agreement.  SPFC will 

review and approve the Lessee requested escrow 

disbursements prior to the Escrow Agent 

disbursing funds.  The Lessee will be 

responsible for all escrow fees charged by the 

Escrow Agent (if any).   Signature Bank does 

not charge an escrow set-up fee.  It is assumed 

that all interest earnings (if any) will accrue for 

benefit of the Lessee and that unused portions of 

the escrow account will be applied to the 

Prepayment of the Lease.   

  

REIMBURSEMENT: If the Lessee intends to be reimbursed for any 

cost associated with the Project, the RFP or the 

Lease financing, intent for reimbursement from 

the Lease Proceeds must be evidenced and must 

qualify under the Treasury Regulation Section 

1.150.2. 

130

WS #9.



 

INSURANCE: The Lessee shall furnish evidence of continuing 

all-risk property and casualty coverage for the 

greater of the Prepayment Price and/or 

replacement value of the Equipment and liability 

coverage of at least $1,000,000 per occurrence 

for each property and bodily injury liability, 

with a minimum of $3,000,000 aggregate for the 

Lease financed hereunder for the full term 

thereof.  Such property and liability coverages 

shall, respectively, name Lessor as loss payee 

and additional insured.  Lessee may choose to 

self-insure or provide alternate coverage on the 

terms and conditions acceptable to and approved 

by the Lessor.  

 

AUTHORIZED SIGNORS: The Lessee’s governing body shall provide 

SPFC with its resolution or other evidence of 

authority to acquire the Equipment, enter into 

the Lease/financing thereof, and to execute the 

Lease Documentation and shall designate the 

individual(s) to execute all necessary documents 

used therein. 

 

LEGAL OPINION: The Lessee’s counsel shall furnish SPFC with a 

validity and tax opinion covering, inter alia, the 

tax-exempt nature of this transaction, the 

authority of the City, the approval of the Project, 

and the approval of the documents used herein.  

This opinion shall be in a form and substance 

satisfactory to SPFC; however, the City’s 

internal counsel may deliver such opinion.  The 

Lessee shall be responsible for its own costs.   

  

LEASE DOCUMENTATION: The Lease Documentation will be prepared by 

SPFC and subject to approval by the Lessee, its 

counsel, SPFC, and its counsel.  Documentation 

shall include all standard representations, 

warranties, and covenants typically associated 

with a transaction of this nature, including any 

requirements of SPFC’s credit approval.  A 

sample lease agreement may be provided upon 

request. 

 

PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE 

BONDS: The Lessor requires to be listed as dual obligee 

on the payment and performance bonds as 

provided by Energy Solutions Professionals.  No 

draws from Escrow shall be permitted until such 

bonds are in place.   

 

131

WS #9.



DUE DILIGENCE:  Where not available in the public domain, and at 

reasonable request by the Lessor, the Lessee 

shall provide documentation and information 

that may include items such as a final executed 

copy of any vendor performance contract with 

detail of projected cost savings and timing of 

savings, three (3) years of current financial 

statements, budgets, demographics, and such 

other financial information relating to the ability 

of the Lessee to continue the Lease as may be 

reasonably requested by SPFC.   Availability of 

the Director of Finance to satisfactorily answer 

any credit questions posed or provide any 

additional financial information requested to 

include a pro forma to address how the City will 

cover the debt service will be required.  SPFC 

has completed a preliminary financial review 

and this proposal is subject to receipt of the 

above mentioned and subject to formal credit 

approval as set forth below. 

 

This proposal shall not be construed as a 

commitment to a lease or lend by and is subject 

to final credit approval by the Credit/Investment 

Committee of Signature Public Funding Corp. 

and Signature Bank and approval of the 

definitive lease documents and final project in 

SPFC’s sole discretion.  Any and all capitalized 

terms not specifically defined herein shall be 

given their meaning under the Lease Documents. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

132

WS #9.



PROPOSAL & TERMS SHEET: PROPOSAL ACCEPTANCE 

City of Moberly 

Tax-exempt Lease Purchase Financing – Energy Conservation Measures, $4,642,450 

 
 

ACCEPTANCE BY LESSEE: 

 

The Proposal & Terms Sheet submitted by Signature Public Funding Corp. on September 13, 

2019 has been reviewed, agreed to, and accepted by the City of Moberly, subject to final Board 

approval. 

 

 

 AGREED AND ACCEPTED: 

 

 CITY OF MOBERLY 
 

 

 By: ___________________________  

                    Name: 

        Title: 

        Date:  

 

 

Option 1 ____ 

Option 2 ____ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

133

WS #9.



Option 1 

 

City of Moberly 
     

       Compound Period: 
 

Quarterly 
   

       Nominal Annual Rate: 2.945% 
   

       AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - Normal Amortization, 360 Day Year 
 

      

Prepayment 

  Date Payment Interest Principal Balance Price 

Loan 10/1/2019 
 

    4,642,450.00 
 1 11/1/2020 137,751.76 150,361.17 -12,609.41 4,655,059.41 4,748,160.60 

2 2/1/2021 137,751.76 34,272.87 103,478.89 4,551,580.52 4,642,612.13 

3 5/1/2021 137,751.76 33,511.01 104,240.75 4,447,339.77 4,536,286.57 

4 8/1/2021 137,751.76 32,743.54 105,008.22 4,342,331.55 4,429,178.18 

5 11/1/2021 137,751.76 31,970.42 105,781.34 4,236,550.21 4,321,281.21 

6 2/1/2022 137,751.76 31,191.60 106,560.16 4,129,990.05 4,212,589.85 

7 5/1/2022 137,751.76 30,407.05 107,344.71 4,022,645.34 4,103,098.25 

8 8/1/2022 137,751.76 29,616.73 108,135.03 3,914,510.31 3,992,800.52 

9 11/1/2022 137,751.76 28,820.58 108,931.18 3,805,579.13 3,881,690.71 

10 2/1/2023 137,751.76 28,018.58 109,733.18 3,695,845.95 3,769,762.87 

11 5/1/2023 137,751.76 27,210.67 110,541.09 3,585,304.86 3,657,010.96 

12 8/1/2023 137,751.76 26,396.81 111,354.95 3,473,949.91 3,543,428.91 

13 11/1/2023 137,751.76 25,576.96 112,174.80 3,361,775.11 3,395,392.86 

14 2/1/2024 137,751.76 24,751.07 113,000.69 3,248,774.42 3,281,262.16 

15 5/1/2024 137,751.76 23,919.10 113,832.66 3,134,941.76 3,166,291.18 

16 8/1/2024 137,751.76 23,081.01 114,670.75 3,020,271.01 3,050,473.72 

17 11/1/2024 137,751.76 22,236.75 115,515.01 2,904,756.00 2,933,803.56 

18 2/1/2025 137,751.76 21,386.27 116,365.49 2,788,390.51 2,816,274.42 

19 5/1/2025 137,751.76 20,529.53 117,222.23 2,671,168.28 2,697,879.96 

20 8/1/2025 137,751.76 19,666.48 118,085.28 2,553,083.00 2,578,613.83 

21 11/1/2025 137,751.76 18,797.07 118,954.69 2,434,128.31 2,458,469.59 

22 2/1/2026 137,751.76 17,921.27 119,830.49 2,314,297.82 2,337,440.80 

23 5/1/2026 137,751.76 17,039.02 120,712.74 2,193,585.08 2,215,520.93 

24 8/1/2026 137,751.76 16,150.27 121,601.49 2,071,983.59 2,092,703.43 

25 11/1/2026 137,751.76 15,254.98 122,496.78 1,949,486.81 1,968,981.68 

26 2/1/2027 137,751.76 14,353.10 123,398.66 1,826,088.15 1,844,349.03 

27 5/1/2027 137,751.76 13,444.57 124,307.19 1,701,780.96 1,718,798.77 

28 8/1/2027 137,751.76 12,529.36 125,222.40 1,576,558.56 1,592,324.15 

29 11/1/2027 137,751.76 11,607.41 126,144.35 1,450,414.21 1,464,918.35 

30 2/1/2028 137,751.76 10,678.67 127,073.09 1,323,341.12 1,336,574.53 

31 5/1/2028 137,751.76 9,743.10 128,008.66 1,195,332.46 1,207,285.78 

134

WS #9.



32 8/1/2028 137,751.76 8,800.64 128,951.12 1,066,381.34 1,077,045.15 

33 11/1/2028 137,751.76 7,851.23 129,900.53 936,480.81 945,845.62 

34 2/1/2029 137,751.76 6,894.84 130,856.92 805,623.89 813,680.13 

35 5/1/2029 137,751.76 5,931.41 131,820.35 673,803.54 680,541.58 

36 8/1/2029 137,751.76 4,960.88 132,790.88 541,012.66 546,422.79 

37 11/1/2029 137,751.76 3,983.21 133,768.55 407,244.11 411,316.55 

38 2/1/2030 137,751.76 2,998.33 134,753.43 272,490.68 275,215.59 

39 5/1/2030 137,751.76 2,006.21 135,745.55 136,745.13 138,112.58 

40 8/1/2030 137,751.76 1,006.63 136,745.13 0.00 0.00 

Grand Totals 5,510,070.40 867,620.40 4,642,450.00 
  

       

       

       Last interest amount decreased by 0.16 due to rounding. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

135

WS #9.



Option 2 
 

City of Moberly 
     

       Compound Period: 
 

Quarterly 
   

       Nominal Annual Rate: 2.945% 
   

       AMORTIZATION SCHEDULE - Normal Amortization, 360 Day Year 
 

      

Prepayment 

  Date Payment Interest Principal Balance Price 

Loan 10/1/2019 
 

    4,642,450.00 
 1 11/1/2020 140,750.00 150,361.17 -9,611.17 4,652,061.17 4,745,102.39 

2 2/1/2021 140,750.00 34,250.80 106,499.20 4,545,561.97 4,636,473.21 

3 5/1/2021 140,750.00 33,466.70 107,283.30 4,438,278.67 4,527,044.24 

4 8/1/2021 140,750.00 32,676.83 108,073.17 4,330,205.50 4,416,809.61 

5 11/1/2021 140,750.00 31,881.14 108,868.86 4,221,336.64 4,305,763.37 

6 2/1/2022 140,750.00 31,079.59 109,670.41 4,111,666.23 4,193,899.55 

7 5/1/2022 140,750.00 30,272.14 110,477.86 4,001,188.37 4,081,212.14 

8 8/1/2022 140,750.00 29,458.75 111,291.25 3,889,897.12 3,967,695.06 

9 11/1/2022 140,750.00 28,639.37 112,110.63 3,777,786.49 3,853,342.22 

10 2/1/2023 140,750.00 27,813.95 112,936.05 3,664,850.44 3,738,147.45 

11 5/1/2023 140,750.00 26,982.46 113,767.54 3,551,082.90 3,622,104.56 

12 8/1/2023 140,750.00 26,144.85 114,605.15 3,436,477.75 3,505,207.31 

13 11/1/2023 140,750.00 25,301.07 115,448.93 3,321,028.82 3,354,239.11 

14 2/1/2024 140,750.00 24,451.07 116,298.93 3,204,729.89 3,236,777.19 

15 5/1/2024 140,750.00 23,594.82 117,155.18 3,087,574.71 3,118,450.46 

16 8/1/2024 140,750.00 22,732.27 118,017.73 2,969,556.98 2,999,252.55 

17 11/1/2024 140,750.00 21,863.36 118,886.64 2,850,670.34 2,879,177.04 

18 2/1/2025 140,750.00 20,988.06 119,761.94 2,730,908.40 2,758,217.48 

19 5/1/2025 140,750.00 20,106.31 120,643.69 2,610,264.71 2,636,367.36 

20 8/1/2025 140,750.00 19,218.07 121,531.93 2,488,732.78 2,513,620.11 

21 11/1/2025 140,750.00 18,323.30 122,426.70 2,366,306.08 2,389,969.14 

22 2/1/2026 140,750.00 17,421.93 123,328.07 2,242,978.01 2,265,407.79 

23 5/1/2026 140,750.00 16,513.93 124,236.07 2,118,741.94 2,139,929.36 

24 8/1/2026 140,750.00 15,599.24 125,150.76 1,993,591.18 2,013,527.09 

25 11/1/2026 140,750.00 14,677.82 126,072.18 1,867,519.00 1,886,194.19 

26 2/1/2027 140,750.00 13,749.61 127,000.39 1,740,518.61 1,757,923.80 

27 5/1/2027 140,750.00 12,814.57 127,935.43 1,612,583.18 1,628,709.01 

28 8/1/2027 140,750.00 11,872.64 128,877.36 1,483,705.82 1,498,542.88 

29 11/1/2027 140,750.00 10,923.78 129,826.22 1,353,879.60 1,367,418.40 

30 2/1/2028 140,750.00 9,967.94 130,782.06 1,223,097.54 1,235,328.52 

31 5/1/2028 140,750.00 9,005.06 131,744.94 1,091,352.60 1,102,266.13 

136

WS #9.



32 8/1/2028 140,750.00 8,035.08 132,714.92 958,637.68 968,224.06 

33 11/1/2028 140,750.00 7,057.97 133,692.03 824,945.65 833,195.11 

34 2/1/2029 140,750.00 6,073.66 134,676.34 690,269.31 697,172.00 

35 5/1/2029 140,750.00 5,082.11 135,667.89 554,601.42 560,147.43 

36 8/1/2029 140,750.00 4,083.25 136,666.75 417,934.67 422,114.02 

37 11/1/2029 140,750.00 3,077.04 137,672.96 280,261.71 283,064.33 

38 2/1/2030 140,750.00 2,063.43 138,686.57 141,575.14 142,990.89 

39 5/1/2030 142,617.49 1,042.35 141,575.14 0.00 0.00 

Grand Totals 5,491,117.49 848,667.49 4,642,450.00 
  

        

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     

       

137

WS #9.



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS – CITY OF MOBERLY 

Signature Public Funding Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of Signature Bank (“SB”).  Our 

parent is a full-service commercial bank offering a wide variety of business and personal banking 

products and services.  The Bank is ranked among the top 1 percent of commercial banks in the 

U.S. based on assets and is one of only three banks in the nation to rank in the top 10 in each of 

the past six years in Forbes annual list of Best and Worst Banks.  Investor Relations and Financial 

Information may all be viewed at www.signatureny.com and click “Investor Information”.   

 

Signature Public Funding Corp. was formed in early 2015 to specialize solely in the providing 

of tax-exempt financing to obligors in the government and not-for-profit sectors across the United 

States.  The SPFC team has a breadth of experience in the tax-exempt marketplace.  Since 

inception, over $850MM of transactions have been completed and funded by SPFC/SB.  

Financings have been provided for rolling stock, computer hardware and software, energy 

conservation measures and facility improvements, communications equipment, real estate, 

copiers, and other miscellaneous essential use equipment.  SPFC has successfully worked with 

the end-users, financial advisors, placement agents, and vendors to bring the transactions to a 

successful close.  The financings have been in the form of master equipment lease purchase 

contracts, revenue pledges and single installment sale contracts.   

 

Our team includes: 

Don Keough, Sr. Managing Director and head of SPFC.  Don has been in the Public Finance 

arena since 2002.  Prior to heading SPFC, Don was in the private practice of law representing a 

significant number of lenders and lessors in this arena. Don previously ran the operations for 

SunTrust Equipment Finance & Leasing Corp’s public finance and municipal leasing division.   

 

Rich Cumbers, Sr. Managing Underwriter.  Prior to joining SPFC, Rich worked at Bridge Capital 

Leasing and Capital One Equipment Finance.  Prior to that, Rich was the head municipal/public 

finance underwriter at SunTrust, which is where Rich and Don successfully closed over $1.2B in 

public finance transactions on an annual basis. 

 

The remainder of the documentation, credit and sales team at SPFC has a similar breadth of 

experience and has worked together for over 12 years.  Tonia Lee, Sr. Documentation Specialist, 

Mike Furnari, Sr. Documentation Specialist, and Tracey Galvani, Sr. Credit Officer would also be 

a part of our team for this transaction. 

 

Primary Contact: 

Chris Youngs Mitchell – Executive Sales Officer, Signature Public Funding:  Chris is an 

Executive Sales Officer for Signature Public Funding based in Denver, Colorado.  Chris is 

responsible for the origination, structuring and purchase of tax-exempt finance offerings for 

public-sector essential use assets in the central and western United States.  Ms. Youngs has over 

30 years’ experience in the tax-exempt finance industry, including both originating and 

syndicating private placement structures.  Prior to joining Signature Public Funding, Ms. Youngs 

was a SVP for Banc of America Public Capital Corp focusing on the financing of energy-

conservation measures and alternative energy sources.  Chris has also held positions with Hannon 

Armstrong Municipal Finance Group, CitiCapital Healthcare and Energy Services Group, and 

ABN AMRO/LaSalle Bank in the roles of origination, syndication and private placement of tax-

exempt obligations.   

 

 

138

WS #9.

http://www.signatureny.com/


PROPOSAL & TERMS SHEET: REFERENCES 

Neosho County Community College 

800 W. 14th Street 

Chanute, KS  66720 

Ben Smith, Vice President for Operations 

820-432-0301 (office) 

bsmith@neosho.edu  

 June 2017 – Master Lease Purchase Agreement with Escrow to finance energy 

conservation measures in the amount of $3,162,044.  A payment schedule was established to 

meet the cash flow needs of the project and the budgetary needs of the College.   Closing was 

facilitated in less than three weeks of notice of award. 

 

 

Northwest Kansas Educational Service Center District No. 602 

703 W. 2nd Avenue 

Oakley, KS  67748 

Dan Thornton, Executive Director 

785-672-3125 

dthornton@nkesc.org 

 May 2018 – Master Lease Purchase Agreement with Escrow to finance energy 

conservation measures for $88,436.   

 

 

Hutchinson Community College 

1300 N. Plum 

Hutchinson, KS  67501 

Julie Blanton, Vice President of Finance and Operations 

blantonj@hutchcc.edu 

 December 2018 – Tax-exempt lease purchase refunding for $4,505,000 of previously 

financed energy conservation measures 

 

 
 

139

WS #9.

mailto:bsmith@neosho.edu
mailto:dthornton@nkesc.org
mailto:blantonj@hutchcc.edu

	Top
	WS #1.	Zoning Change for 1301 Union Ave. submitted by Lori Turk
	P and Z Zoning Union
	Re-zoning for 1301 Union
	Approval Certificate  Re-zoning

	WS #2.	Establishing a speed limit for Terrill Road
	Speed Limit Terrill Rd.
	Terrill Road Speed Ordinance

	WS #3.	Sugar Creek Dam Leak Mitigation Phase II
	Sugar Creek Dam Leak Mitigation Phase II.SUmmary sheet
	Sugar Creek Dam Leak Mitigation Phase II

	WS #4.	Replacement of sludge basin blower at the wastewater plant.
	Summary Sheet, work session 9-16-2019, blower replacement[1774]
	AERZEN Acknowledgement of Purchase Order

	WS #5.	Resolution of Support of the Moberly Junior High School Senior Housing Project
	Old jr hi
	Old Junior Resolution

	WS #6.	Review of a lease agreement for Tim Zike for 122 N. Williams Street
	Zike Cover Memo
	Zike Resolution
	Zike Lease  223 n williams

	WS #7.	Review of Proposals for Historian for Historic Application and Development
	Historian rfp
	keenoy preservation01266420190905135022
	historian

	WS #8.	Review of Proposals for Walking Tour App Development
	Walking tour
	tour buddy01266120190905134805
	map n tour01266220190905134839
	travel story01266320190905134931
	App developer

	WS #9.	Energy Performance Financing for Public Utilities Projects
	Agenda item form - energy performance lease purchase financing
	Energy Performance Contract financing bid - FSCB
	Energy Performance Contract financing bid - Signature

	Bottom

